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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: The Committee on

          3  Governmental Operations is now in session.  We would

          4  like to thank you for your cooperation and your

          5  presence.

          6                 Our first witnesses will be, I wonder

          7  who they are, have you ever heard of Campaign

          8  Finance?  Good, let's try them first and see,

          9  Campaign Finance, and let's see if our incoming

         10  Federal Campaign, Senatorial Candidates have heard

         11  of Campaign Finance.

         12                 Would you please identify yourselves

         13  by name and title, and if you have prepared

         14  testimony, we're willing to listen at this time.

         15                 MS. GORDON:  Thank you, Council

         16  Member Pinkett.  I'm Nicole Gordon, Executive

         17  Director of the New York City Campaign Finance

         18  Board.  With me is Carol Campolo, to my right,

         19  Deputy Executive Director; Laurence Laufer, General

         20  Counsel to my left.

         21                 Since the last time I appeared before

         22  you, the Board continues to implement the many new

         23  mandates that were given to the agency last year

         24  through Council legislation and a Charter Revision.

         25  This has included hiring and training of new staff
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          2  to deal with the tremendous burdens the Board will

          3  face both from the new mandates and from the onset

          4  of term limits, which will make the 2001 elections

          5  the busiest in the history of New York City.

          6                 The CFB was also active in the

          7  off-year Council elections of last month, which were

          8  the first to be held using the new 4-for-1 matching

          9  formula up to $250, for the February special

         10  elections, the matching rate was 4-for-1 up to $125.

         11  The Board published a City-wide Voter Guide for the

         12  recent Charter Revision referendum, as well as

         13  separate guides for the Council elections.

         14                 It's interesting to note that all

         15  four of the successful candidates in the recently

         16  concluded elections were program participants, and

         17  of particular note is the 4th District, I want you

         18  to know that I was unaware that Council Member

         19  Moskowitz was on this Committee, until I arrived,

         20  but nonetheless, we had intended to comment on the

         21  interesting facts of that 4th District election

         22  where Council Member Moskowitz spent $350,000

         23  approximately in defeating a non- participant who

         24  spent approximately $1.2 million.  Because of the

         25  high-spending, non participant, Council Member
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          2  Moskowitz received public funds at the new increased

          3  rate of 5-for-1 up to $250 in the bonus matching

          4  situation.

          5                 The November elections showed trends

          6  very similar to those we saw in the February special

          7  elections.  Private funds, funds from organizations,

          8  and the percentage of funds that came in

          9  contributions of $1,000 or more were all decreased

         10  in these Council elections.

         11                 When the high-spending 4th Council

         12  District is factored out the average contribution

         13  size in the remaining three districts decreased from

         14  $227 in 1997 to $139 in 1999, and we have a number

         15  of statistics in the written version of the

         16  testimony that I give you some sense of the changes

         17  that we have experienced in between the change and

         18  the matching formula.

         19                 Overall the off-year elections

         20  functioned smoothly under the new program

         21  provisions, partly the result of training sessions

         22  that we conducted, and partly the result of the

         23  widespread use of C-SMART, and I want to emphasize

         24  the use of C-SMART has really changed the landscape

         25  both for candidates and for the Board. The
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          2  candidates who use C-SMART find it is the most

          3  efficient way and shortest way to avoid filing

          4  defects, and it makes the job much easier for them

          5  and for us, because when we get the filing we stick

          6  it in the computer and it's virtually, instantly

          7  available on the Internet to the public, so that has

          8  been a very big change for us.

          9                 The total amount of public funds

         10  distributed for last month's elections was under

         11  $250,000 so far.  The total we distributed in FY

         12  1999 was under $1 million, including about $750,000

         13  for the February special elections, and over

         14  $200,000 for payments to candidates leftover from

         15  the 1997 elections, and the total payments to date

         16  in FY 2000 has been $350,000.

         17                 We published multiple Voter Guides in

         18  October for our public education mandate.  One

         19  provided extensive information on the Charter

         20  Revision Referendum, including a plain language

         21  description of the questions, highlights of the

         22  major arguments, and pro and con statements from the

         23  public, and this was distributed to approximately

         24  three million households City-wide. A separate Voter

         25  Guide containing statements from the candidates for
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          2  the Council elections was distributed to a total of

          3  about 200,000 households in the four effected

          4  districts, and the Voter Guide was on the Board's

          5  website.

          6                 We expect that the total cost for all

          7  the Voter Guides, including design, translation,

          8  proofreading, printing, labeling, and postage, will

          9  come out to between $1 million and $1.5 million,

         10  which we believe is a small amount for reaching the

         11  entire voting public with a substantial information.

         12                 This year the Voter Guide contract

         13  was awarded to a tri-state area company, MacNaughton

         14  Einson Graphics of Fair Lawn, New Jersey.  It was

         15  the lowest bidder on a two-year contract. Previous

         16  Voter Guide contracts had been for a single year,

         17  but the Board decided that a longer term contract

         18  would be more efficient because of the possibility

         19  of special elections and the recent record of

         20  frequent ballottable proposals.

         21                 With respect to the FY 1999 Adopted

         22  Budget that was about $3.5 million, but it

         23  understated the Board's needs because $1 million

         24  that was not included in $3.5 million was actually

         25  spent on a City-wide Voter Guide.  We had requested
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          2  that money, but it was not forthcoming, and

          3  similarly, $1 million was spent in public funds on

          4  candidates pursuant to our mandates, but that was

          5  also not reflected, so a better measure of what FY

          6  1999 should have looked like would have been $5.5

          7  million.

          8                 The FY 2000 Budget is $6.9 million,

          9  it includes funding for the City-wide Charter

         10  Revision Voter Guide, several Council District

         11  Guides, and an increase in headcount over the

         12  previous fiscal year.  Our headcount will continue

         13  to increase as we approach the 2001 elections, which

         14  I mentioned before, will be by far the most

         15  extensive we have ever had in New York City history.

         16                 As you are aware, pursuant to the

         17  1998 City Charter Revision, the Board does submit to

         18  the Mayor its estimates of its financial needs.  The

         19  Mayor must include the Campaign Finance Board

         20  estimates in the Executive Budget when he transmits

         21  that budget to the City Council, and, of course, he

         22  makes whatever recommendations he deems appropriate.

         23    The Charter mandates that the Campaign Finance

         24  Board budget is adopted pursuant to the same

         25  provisions of the Charter that apply to the
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          2  Council's operating budget.

          3                 As part of the FY 2000 budget

          4  modification process, OMB has proposed a reduction

          5  in the Campaign Finance Board of $500,000 which was

          6  set aside for legal fees that the Board has

          7  projected in case of potential litigation,

          8  particularly litigation with respect to the 4-for-1

          9  public funds matching formula.  Like the Council,

         10  the Board believes that including funds for

         11  independent attorneys is fiscally prudent when there

         12  is a clear conflict of interest that would prevent

         13  the Corporation Counsel from representing us if

         14  there were litigation.

         15                 Last year's Charter Revision also

         16  brought new doing business disclosure rules, we have

         17  put out three different possible sets of rules for

         18  disclosure of doing business.  Under each of these

         19  proposals only campaigns that raised or spent over

         20  $500,000 would be implicated.  We do invite public

         21  comment, we have a public hearing set for January

         22  13th, and we hope very much that Council members

         23  will offer their reactions to these proposals.

         24                 We also will soon be submitting to

         25  the Council, to this Committee in particular, our

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            10

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  proposals for changes in the law relating to

          3  debates.  Those debates, you will recall, were

          4  mandatory for the first time in 1997, and with the

          5  huge volume of candidates expected in 2001,

          6  including races for open seats for all three

          7  City-wide offices, we do increase not only a huge

          8  increase in the number of candidates, but also,

          9  perhaps, some increase in the number of debates.  We

         10  are drawing on our past experience, also on recent

         11  Supreme Court decision, and seeking to make the

         12  debate program even more effective for the future.

         13                 On public disclosure we do maintain

         14  the most comprehensive database of any municipality

         15  in the country.  We include contributions,

         16  expenditures, public funds payments, loans, and

         17  intermediary information for every candidate in the

         18  program and we are on the website at

         19  www.cfb.nyc.ny.us where you can search the data, and

         20  also where you can find summary reports.

         21                 We were able this year, this was a

         22  great improvement for us to turn our online database

         23  into virtually a real time source for public

         24  disclosure.  When we get the information from the

         25  candidates electronically, we are able to place that
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          2  information on the website on the same day.  And

          3  this improvement has been made largely possible

          4  because of the increase use of C-SMART that I

          5  referred to before, and because of the efficiency

          6  and usefulness to the public we do support mandated

          7  electronic filing for filings with the Campaign

          8  Finance Board.

          9                 I do want to bring to your attention

         10  the annual meeting of the Council on Governmental

         11  Ethics Laws, and we were very pleased to see a

         12  representative of the Council staff was there this

         13  year.  It's the umbrella organization for Ethics and

         14  Campaign Finance Agencies throughout North America.

         15  Our staff served as panelists and moderators for

         16  seminars on public financing, public disclosure, and

         17  advisory opinions, and our System's Unit set up a

         18  computer demonstration room, and among the things

         19  that were showcased there, of course, were the

         20  Board's website and database.

         21                 But perhaps the most gratifying part

         22  of the experience that I hope the Council will

         23  share, is the respect accorded to the New York City

         24  Campaign Finance Program by agencies throughout the

         25  United States and Canada.  The pioneer reform
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          2  legislation that this Council passed in 1988 is 11

          3  years later recognized as one of the most effective

          4  in the nation.

          5                 Finally, as we prepare for the 2001

          6  elections, we are working very hard to prepare

          7  educational materials for candidates.  We are

          8  revising our handbook, we are preparing materials,

          9  in particular, on the new 4- for- 1 public funds

         10  matching formula, and our Candidate Services Unit

         11  will be holding training sessions for perspective

         12  candidates beginning this month, December 14th,

         13  January 5th in the new year, and January 6th.

         14                 And that is a summary of our recent

         15  work.  Our work we believe is very urgent at this

         16  time, knowing that 2001 will be by far the largest

         17  set of elections in the history of the City, and we

         18  look forward to working with you to implement the

         19  program and the many changes in the law that have

         20  resulted from action by the Council and Charter

         21  Revision.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Thank you very

         24  much for your very excellent testimony, and before I

         25  go any further, I would like to acknowledge the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  presence of our Council members on this Committee.

          3  Some of our members, I must state, have more than

          4  one Committee and some on in other Committee

          5  meetings.  I know Council Member Stabile was here

          6  and then he went into the Committee in the adjacent

          7  room, so you will find that Council members will be

          8  going back and forth because of other

          9  responsibilities.  To my far left, you have Council

         10  Member Carrion from the Bronx, and, of course, the

         11  expensive new addition, I say expensive because her

         12  campaign has probably cost, well, less than her

         13  predecessor, but more than she probably hoped to

         14  have spent, Council Member Moskowitz, whom we're

         15  very happy to have join this as a member of this

         16  body, who is a member of this Committee, from

         17  Manhattan.  To my far right, we have Council Member

         18  Rivera, Council member from the Bronx; Council

         19  Member Julia Harrison, who is a Council member from

         20  Queens, and I'm Council Member Mary Pinkett from

         21  Brooklyn.

         22                 We will continue and I think I have

         23  exactly at this moment, maybe one question to ask

         24  you.  Is there any intention of your office to

         25  relocate any time soon?
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          2                 MS. GORDON:  Well our office never

          3  intended to relocate.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Are you being

          5  evicted or dispossessed?

          6                 MS. GORDON:  There really hasn't been

          7  any discussion about it since the last time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  That is not the

          9  question, are you being evicted or dispossessed?

         10                 MS. GORDON:  Not that I'm aware of.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  It is to your

         12  knowledge that, then you will remain at your current

         13  site?

         14                 MS. GORDON:  That is our

         15  understanding and expectation, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, fine.

         17  When you talk about the education and the work that

         18  you have done, and I know members of our

         19  professional staff has visited your, I believe your

         20  website and seen the work that you have there, a

         21  large part of our population does not have

         22  computers, and so thereby they are sort of locked

         23  out of all of this information.  Have you given

         24  thought to going into the public schools, or the

         25  schools, period?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 I found that when I went into

          3  schools, there was no teaching of election, the

          4  election process in either the public or the

          5  parochial schools, even around registration.  It was

          6  something if you lucked into it, good for you, if

          7  you didn't luck into it, it's okay too.  And I'm

          8  wondering since this is such an important process,

          9  the City spends so much money, what would be your

         10  thoughts to perhaps sharing this kind of

         11  information, especially on the high school and

         12  college level?

         13                 MS. GORDON:  Well, I'm glad you

         14  brought that up because it's something I'm

         15  personally very interested in, and it's something

         16  that we discussed at the Board a number of times, we

         17  have often thought that the Voter Guide might be a

         18  good vehicle because we could pass that out and hope

         19  maybe the kids would bring them home and push their

         20  parents along to vote and so forth.  So it would not

         21  just educate the children, but, perhaps, also in

         22  turn help educate the households that they live in.

         23                 Our constraint primarily is resources

         24  that unfortunately for us the election period when

         25  our work is most interesting to the general public,
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          2  is also the time when we have the least ability to

          3  do activities outside our office, but I would

          4  welcome an opportunity, especially through the good

          5  offices of the City Council to meet with the Board

          6  of Education or with other educators to discuss how

          7  we could help the subject of civic understanding.

          8                 And it just so happens I, in another

          9  hat, I work with a group called the Constitutional

         10  Works, which gives materials to high school students

         11  to learn more about the Constitution and teach them

         12  how to present themselves and make arguments and so

         13  on. So, as I said, I would welcome an opportunity if

         14  you have thoughts about the right person for us to

         15  speak to, if we could get someone to help carry the

         16  ball on this.  I know our Press Unit and our

         17  Publications Unit would be very, very pleased to

         18  work together with the Board of Education on

         19  educating students both about the program and the

         20  Voter Guide.

         21                 And if I may interrupt myself, I

         22  would just like to welcome our Board Member Rabbi

         23  Joseph Potasnik from Brooklyn, who is very kindly

         24  here with us today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Well, welcome,
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          2  Rabbi Potasnik, nice to see you, again.

          3                 The other question would be, too, we

          4  make a great, I think, we have a great concern about

          5  the number of new Americans that have come into our

          6  country and we expect them all to learn how to be

          7  Americans just because the Yankees win a baseball

          8  game, and we tell them nothing about the country.

          9  They're supposed to become citizens and they learn

         10  something for a few weeks or months, however, what

         11  about voting, what about the potentials for

         12  participating in this democracy?

         13                 As I look around the room, the

         14  reflection is not there.  You have, for instance, I

         15  had some friends who lived in Chatnam Green, the

         16  co-op over here.  The marvel to me was that the

         17  Voters Guide was in Chinese, and yet you have a

         18  large Chinese population, who would speak to them in

         19  terms of this Voters Guide, what it would mean, how

         20  important it is to participate, many of them have

         21  been here for years?  The same thing would happen, I

         22  would say Brighton Beach, Russia by the Sea as you

         23  would call it. There are a lot of people in this

         24  country who need more information in order to bring

         25  this country together, I would think.  I would seem
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          2  to me that that would be an important aspect,

          3  because voting is really the glue and the key.  What

          4  are your thoughts?

          5                 MS. GORDON:  Well, of course, our

          6  mandate is limited to the communities that speak

          7  languages covered by the Voting Rights Act, and I

          8  like to feel that we do a very good job of getting

          9  the materials prepared in Spanish and Chinese.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Then you have

         11  to come into my community, Council Member Carrion's

         12  community, Council Member Rivera's community, Julia

         13  Harrison's community, which is a bilingual community

         14  of all bilingual communities, and they have to stay

         15  out of the rest of the community, and, oh, yes,

         16  Council Member Sabini's community.  Now the rest of

         17  the City can go bye-bye, don't spend any money on

         18  them, because we would be covered by the Voting

         19  Rights Act.

         20                 So, thereby, you have got to think

         21  this thing through, because what you are supposed to

         22  be doing, I think, is creating a more effective and

         23  better America by creating a more informed America,

         24  as well.

         25                 MS. GORDON:  Well we certainly do
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          2  distribute the Guide to communities throughout the

          3  City, through public libraries, community groups and

          4  schools.  Right now we don't have the capacity to

          5  deal in additional languages, but I wonder whether

          6  the Voters Assistance Commission or some other

          7  entities - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:   You need funds

          9  for that --

         10                 MS. GORDON:  Well, yes, it always

         11  comes down to that. But I think our Board would be

         12  very pleased in any way that it could to work

         13  together with others to educate them about New York

         14  City, in particular, and our form of government, and

         15  the candidates who are running, and how to vote, and

         16  all of the aspects of our mandate that we work very

         17  hard to present in English and Spanish and Chinese.

         18  But right now, we do what we can do within our

         19  resources, but I think our Board has always been

         20  very eager as much of a participant as possible in

         21  the broader picture, and we would be pleased to do

         22  that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Thank you, I

         24  don't expect to do what I'm suggesting with the same

         25  budget, I understand that it takes money to make
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          2  anything work, including that which we currently

          3  have.  But I do believe that if there is a mandate,

          4  for instance, Rabbi Potasnik, would have ideas, and

          5  Father Lynch would have ideas as to how things could

          6  be done in order to make things work within the

          7  City, there would be organizations of various ethnic

          8  groups who would ideas in ways of working together

          9  to help disseminate this information, but that you

         10  would be the catalyst that perhaps could provide

         11  them with assistance.

         12                 And I concluded by saying this, I was

         13  invited to attend a meeting at Council Member

         14  Sabini's club, and I went to speak, expecting that

         15  everyone would speak the same language that I spoke,

         16  and I got up to speak, and then the interpreter

         17  interpreted as I spoke.  And it was the most

         18  fascinating experience, I said a few sentences, and

         19  then the interpreter translated, and everyone had a

         20  wonderful evening.  But it was a tremendous learning

         21  experience for them and for me.  And I think it is

         22  also true that we, in America, must learn that if we

         23  bring people into this country, we have to share the

         24  knowledge so that they truly become a part of this

         25  country, and they must understand what the voting
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          2  practices and procedures are in order to fully

          3  participate.

          4                 And I think you have done through

          5  this Committee, through this agency such a marvelous

          6  job, that it would be a shame that you do not have

          7  the funds to expand that knowledge in many ways.

          8                 Thank you.  Are there any further

          9  questions? Council Member Reed from Manhattan and

         10  the Bronx has joined us, and, of course, Council

         11  Member Sabini is from Queens.  Council Member

         12  Moskowitz will ask her first question, followed by

         13  Council Member Sabini, then Council Member Carrion.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  I want to

         15  thank Ms. Gordon and all of the Campaign Finance

         16  Board staff, I have had a lot of personal

         17  interaction with the agency, and I have always been

         18  very, very impressed with the work that you have

         19  done.  I wanted to ask whether there were any

         20  movements afoot to deal with a particular situation

         21  that I have experienced, twice, as you mentioned, I

         22  have run against people that haven't participated in

         23  the Campaign Finance Program, and while the Buckley

         24  versus Velello case does not enable anyone to compel

         25  someone to participate, I don't see any reason why
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          2  we could not mandate that all of the disclosure of

          3  requirements that a participant must comply with, a

          4  non- participant could be made to comply with.  And

          5  I was wondering why there hasn't been any movement

          6  on that front?

          7                 MS. GORDON:  The reason lies in the

          8  State Legislature.  Our Board has, for many years,

          9  proposed legislation that would accomplish exactly

         10  what you're talking about.  It would require non-

         11  participants to give the same detailed financial

         12  information including employer, occupation, et

         13  cetera, and it would require them to file at the

         14  Campaign Finance Board so that we could have an

         15  opportunity for the public to compare apples and

         16  apples. Right now, as you're describing, you can

         17  have a candidate who is in the program giving all

         18  this detailed information on the Internet, et

         19  cetera, et cetera, and for the one who is not you

         20  have to walk over to the City Board of Elections and

         21  look at paper filings, and even then the categories

         22  of information are not all there that we have.

         23                 We have had this proposed legislation

         24  at the State level, it has been introduced, and if

         25  we could get your support and the support of others
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          2  to make it a matter of priority for the State

          3  Legislature, I would hope that it could be passed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Council Member

          5  Sabini.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair. Good morning, good morning to the

          8  panel.  First let me welcome Council Member

          9  Moskowitz on her maiden voyage in front of the

         10  Committee, and I look forward to serving with her.

         11                 Sometimes the devil is in the details

         12  and one of the things that occurs to me that will

         13  create an escalated increase in the cost of the

         14  Voter Guide is the fact that we now have so many

         15  official parties with ballot status in the State of

         16  New York that we didn't have in prior municipal

         17  election cycles, so that while we lost the freedom

         18  party, they really never ran the candidates

         19  separately.  But, yet we now in addition to the

         20  Republican, Democratic, Conservative, Liberal,

         21  Independents, Greene, Working Families, Right to

         22  Life, many of them have asserted they're going to

         23  run fewer cross endorsed candidates for Municipal

         24  Office.  And I'm just wondering if the agency has

         25  done anything to figure out what that is going to do
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          2  to cause an increase or a spike in the cost of the

          3  Voter Guide, since with 51 Council Districts,

          4  probably 30 some odd with vacant seats, four vacant

          5  Borough Presidencies, three vacant City- wide

          6  Offices, it sounds like a lot of more paper, and

          7  since we have had a hard time getting this thing

          8  printed within the confines of the United States, in

          9  fact, almost can't get it printed in North America,

         10  I'm wondering what the increase in the amount of

         11  pages is going to cost your operation?

         12                 MS. GORDON:  Well we have been

         13  looking at the issue of the additional parties at

         14  the same time that we're looking at the issue of

         15  term limits, and the number of additional candidates

         16  that that will bring in, and the fact that the

         17  matching formula has changed, which we also

         18  anticipate will attract a lot more candidates.  So

         19  it is going to be an issue for the Voter Guide as

         20  you have pointed out, and it is also going to be an

         21  issue for the cost of the program and our operations

         22  and debates, don't forget debates, mandatory debates

         23  for the three City- wide Offices.  So there are

         24  many, many implications, and we have been looking at

         25  all of these items and anticipating that, for
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          2  example, in Brooklyn, which has the most

          3  concentrated numbers from our point of view, we're

          4  looking at the possibility of having to print two

          5  Voter Guides, just for one borough, I have to divide

          6  it up in some way, because we don't know that we can

          7  print a Guide with the kind of binding that we use

          8  that is much thicker than what we have been doing

          9  already.

         10                 So our publication staff, which is

         11  very experienced and sophisticated has been studying

         12  what our options are.  We haven't come to any

         13  conclusions yet, because we're still trying to look

         14  with our experience now at the number of filers we

         15  get trying to make some intelligent assessments of

         16  what the numbers are really going to look like, as

         17  opposed to just some wild speculation, but it

         18  definitely is going to be a very, very substantial

         19  change and we're now prepared to start thinking

         20  about it in Brooklyn, and there may be other places

         21  too, about more than one Guide per borough.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  A year ago

         23  you testified about OMB balking at the 4-for-1

         24  formula, you may have testified to this, but where

         25  are we with that now, is there been some settlement
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          2  with OMB?

          3                 MS. GORDON:  There has not been any

          4  settlement, we administered the program last

          5  February and this past fall on the basis of the 4-

          6  for- 1 formula.  As you know, there is an opinion by

          7  the Corporation Counsel that disputes the Council's

          8  4- for- 1 matching formula.  Our Board has, I think,

          9  been very consistent in its administration and in

         10  its statements that it is very confident that the 4-

         11  for- 1 matching formula is preserved, and that we

         12  are prepared if were to happen, and the litigation

         13  was threatened, if there were litigation, we would

         14  be prepared to defend it, and we have looked at the

         15  matter very closely from all legal aspects, and

         16  we're very confident that the 4-for-1 matching

         17  formula would be upheld, if it were challenged.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Judging by

         19  the Corporation Counsel's recent record in court, I

         20  would have no doubt that we would win that, as well.

         21    And, especially, in light of the fact that the

         22  4-for-1 match was signed by the Mayor, after

         23  legislation passed the Council, so.

         24                 MS. GORDON:  Well this does go to

         25  what I mentioned earlier about the $500,000 that OMB
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          2  wants to cut from our budget now, and that $500,000

          3  is set aside for legal fees in the event that there

          4  were a challenge, and, of course, the Corporation

          5  Counsel's Office would be conflicted out of being

          6  able to represent us.  I think it is a similar item

          7  that the Council may face when it has to deal with

          8  who represents the Council, and that is the reason

          9  that we had put that money aside.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I noted with

         11  interest that in the Voter Guide that appeared this

         12  year, while you are not mandated by the Charter, you

         13  had some brief description of the State Ballot

         14  question, and I was wondering what the decision

         15  process was on that, and if you intend, if it was a

         16  precedent sitting process, or whether it was just

         17  because you didn't have much going on this year?

         18                 MS. GORDON:  That we always had a

         19  policy of printing the State Ballot proposal just so

         20  that the voter has a complete picture of what ballot

         21  proposals are on.  We have never done the pro, con,

         22  statements either, as prepared by the Board or from

         23  the public force State proposals.  Although, I

         24  should mention many people have urged us to do that,

         25  but it's not squarely in our mandate to do that, and
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          2  we didn't know that we really had the expertise to

          3  bring to bear on that easily available to us.  So

          4  the policy of the Board has always been print the

          5  State Ballot proposal so that the public knows that

          6  it is there, but don't go beyond that, it's not

          7  really part of our mandate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Well any

          9  information you get to the voter, I think it is

         10  helpful.

         11                 Thank you, Madam Chair.  Thank you,

         12  Ms. Gordon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair. Actually I was interested in that issue

         15  about the refusal of OMB to honor your request and

         16  then call it illegal, but in the upcoming elections

         17  in 2001, we probably can begin to estimate the

         18  number of candidates that will be out there, and it

         19  is a difficult thing to do, there is no science to

         20  this.  Have you done any gaining internally in terms

         21  of, you know, a certain volume of candidates and

         22  what the funds that you might need are in that year?

         23                 MS. GORDON:  What we have done so far

         24  is two things, one is, we looked at the data from

         25  1997 and we superimposed on that the new matching
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          2  formula, and what we saw was approximately a

          3  doubling in the cost of the payments made to

          4  candidates.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What is the

          6  dollar amount, I'm sorry?

          7                 MS. GORDON:  That would have been

          8  about, we spent about 6.5 million in 1997, - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.

         10                 MS. GORDON: - -  so the magnitude of

         11  the change makes it about 13 million, I don't

         12  remember the exact numbers, but it is very close to

         13  that.  Now that, of course, doesn't take into

         14  account two important factors and others as well.

         15  One, it doesn't take into account the fact that

         16  people will change the way they do their Campaigning

         17  in order to maximize the benefit of the program, so

         18  you have to expect an increase from that, and it

         19  doesn't take into account the fact that there will

         20  be many, many more candidates, both because of the

         21  attractiveness of the formula and because of term

         22  limits.  Without getting pinned down to specific

         23  numbers, I think we're looking at least, at a two to

         24  three times increase in numbers of candidates and in

         25  the other cost associated with that.  But I think it
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          2  could even be higher, and one thing that we're

          3  seeing now, we're starting to get the preliminary

          4  filings that people make in advance of the election

          5  year, and we're seeing a lot of those, and we're

          6  seeing a lot of people using C- SMART our candidate

          7  software getting, we're now seeing almost as many

          8  people already using C- SMART at this time in the

          9  election cycle as we had for the whole of the 1997

         10  election.  So I don't want to underestimate, we will

         11  be watching it very closely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, you

         13  have led me to the next issue that I'm interested

         14  in, which was an update on C SMART, in particular, I

         15  understand that you're going to a Windows

         16  environment, and that it should be coming out soon.

         17                 MS. GORDON:  Yes, we will be coming

         18  out with it soon, and I appreciate your interest in

         19  C- SMART, I don't know if you were here earlier when

         20  I mentioned that.  We believe that C SMART is the

         21  single, most effective thing that a candidate can

         22  rely on in order both to be constantly reminded of

         23  Campaign Finance rules and to get the filing right,

         24  to get it done in a way that will be accepted by the

         25  Board.  We're very, very pleased with how the
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          2  development has been going with C- SMART, and we

          3  have been very lucky that many Council Campaigns and

          4  others have been willing to spend some time to give

          5  us feedback.

          6                 So we're hoping to have it out early

          7  in the new year, and I better confirm about the

          8  Windows environment, in the spring, excuse me, I was

          9  overly optimistic, perhaps, in the spring.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  It gives you

         11  a nice window, right?

         12                 MS. GORDON:  A window, right?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  For spring.

         14                 MS. GORDON:  No pun intended.  But we

         15  got some new bells and whistles on this that are

         16  going to help candidates use the software for their

         17  own mailings, for example, that I think will be very

         18  helpful to people, not to have to repeat the

         19  inputting, and it's got some very good features,

         20  it's simplified from last time, and, I don't know,

         21  Ken, do you have anything you want to add about C-

         22  SMART that I missed?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The Windows

         24  question?

         25                 MS. GORDON:  Windows, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  It will be

          3  operating in a Windows environment?

          4                 Yes, let me just say in closing, that

          5  outside of a few small glitches I think that C-

          6  SMART, to me, it was very helpful.  I think it is a

          7  good management tool.

          8                 MS. GORDON:  Great.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  If we could

         10  smarten it up even more, that is a good thing.

         11                 MS. GORDON:  We're working on it,

         12  thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Council Member

         15  Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair.  And I would also like to welcome my

         18  colleague from Manhattan to her first, this

         19  Committee, and I'm looking forward to working with

         20  her on this, and I think that her campaign was

         21  amblermatic (phonetic) of the need for the

         22  alternatives for people who don't have a lot of

         23  money.  And I think the voters in part spoke to that

         24  exact issue.

         25                 So I'm pleased that we had an
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          2  opportunity to have the money there in this Campaign

          3  and that you so dramatically demonstrated what David

          4  and Golith, how David sometimes wins in these

          5  events.

          6                 My concern and issue is sort of

          7  following up on Council Member Carrion, as you

          8  probably remember part of my ongoing concern is the

          9  difficulty that so many candidates have as

         10  grassroots candidates, even though you're saying it

         11  is going to be simplified in all of this, it is

         12  still not easy.  And I'm curious if you have looked

         13  at some, perhaps, for having opportunities to, what

         14  is the word I'm trying to use, having training

         15  sessions, that is what I'm looking at, over the next

         16  coming years.  Someone told me that we have in

         17  excess of 300 people who have already sort of

         18  registered to run for the City Council?

         19                 MS. GORDON:  I'm not aware of that,

         20  no, I'm not aware of any one.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Do you have

         22  some ballpark figure?

         23                 MS. GORDON:  Well, we know how many

         24  people are filing with us, excuse me for a minute.

         25  We have under 100 people filing with us.  What is  -
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          2   -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:   Well let's

          4  squash that rumor that they have done in the lounge,

          5  okay, good.

          6                 MS. GORDON:  No, my staff has just

          7  alerted me, the 300 number you have, I don't whether

          8  it comes from us or not, but we do maintain a list,

          9  it's just our own list that we get from the

         10  newspapers and what we here about, and we do have a

         11  list that is about 300 people, whose names have been

         12  mentioned out there as possible candidates.  We have

         13  a mailing, we use it as mailing list for information

         14  outreach.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I would still

         16  be interested to know if you are going to be

         17  looking, how far out are you going to be looking at

         18  providing opportunities for training and questions

         19  and answers from candidates?  I mean, of course,

         20  being an incumbent I would be happy if you don't

         21  train anybody, but that's a joke, for the record,

         22  that's a joke.

         23                 MS. GORDON:  We are actually starting

         24  our training sessions right about now.  We have a

         25  session for December 14th, two in January already
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          2  scheduled, and we will be going to have sessions in

          3  each of the boroughs as well as in our offices more

          4  and more as we get closer and closer to the

          5  elections.  We're revamping our materials, I hope to

          6  make them more understandable and C- SMART as well.

          7                 And I do want to mention one other

          8  thing that you mentioned earlier about how the

          9  program is not easy, and I think, that is something

         10  that people have to be aware of.  And one thing I

         11  have asked our staff to do when we do the new

         12  handbook is to make it clear right on the first page

         13  to the candidates, you know, this is a program

         14  matching funds, all rest of that, but it is public

         15  money that candidates will be getting and that many

         16  campaigns have reported that it is, it takes a very

         17  serious commitment, by the treasurer, in particular,

         18  to do the work of the campaign, and maybe just to

         19  alert people straight up that they have to be aware

         20  of that and be ready to make that commitment.

         21  Because I think maybe what has happened that people

         22  maybe gotten into this not realizing what their time

         23  commitment might have to be or the expertise,

         24  perhaps, level.  So the competence and time has to

         25  be there on the candidates side as well, and that is
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          2  something, I think, as we do our outreach and our

          3  education, also has to be emphasized.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Well that is

          5  especially, that's really where I was going.  I

          6  mean, I think it's a win/win situation, it can

          7  winnow down the field making your life easier, or if

          8  the field stays the same, at least they actually

          9  have some experience and they're better educated

         10  going into it.  There is a lot of expectation out

         11  there, right now, that, you know, that there is just

         12  money available, and it's just not that simple.

         13                 MS. GORDON:  Exactly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So I would

         15  certainly encourage that.  Thank you.

         16                 MS. GORDON:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Are there any

         18  further questions?  Thank you.  We thank you for

         19  your testimony and we thank you for the classes, and

         20  I know that the Council members who must run again

         21  are grateful for the training sessions, and those

         22  who are running for the first time, will be grateful

         23  for the training session, and we look forward to the

         24  results with great interest.

         25                 MS. GORDON:  And thank you for your
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          2  courtesy and support.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Is the Tax

          4  Commission present. Thank you.  Identify yourself

          5  for the record, and then commence your testimony.

          6  We received your response today, and we will go

          7  forward at this time.

          8                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Yes, good afternoon,

          9  Chairwoman Pinkett, and Members Harrison, and

         10  Moskowitz, and Carrion, and Reed, and Sabini, I

         11  didn't see him standing back there.  And I also just

         12  want to take a moment to - -  my name is James

         13  DeCuzzi, President of the New York City Tax

         14  Commission.  I also just wanted to take a moment to

         15  congratulate Council Member Moskowitz on her

         16  election and to ensure that the Tax Commission and I

         17  look forward to working constructively and

         18  cooperatively with her, as has been our way with the

         19  Governmental Operations Committee throughout my

         20  tenure.

         21                 In response to your preliminary

         22  question, Madam Chairwoman, I just want to note, for

         23  the record, that we did as requested, submit in

         24  advance written responses to the written questions

         25  that the Committee posed, and we also included some
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          2  attachments, as well as a requisite number of copies

          3  of our 1998 Annual Report, which we submitted to the

          4  Mayor and the Council pursuant to the Charter

          5  proscription. And I would be happy to illuminate

          6  anything in those documents or to respond to any

          7  other questions that the Committee may have at this

          8  time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I don't know, I

         10  think that possibly we're going to ask you to, well,

         11  we will ask you the question and ask you to repeat

         12  the answers.

         13                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Because in this

         15  particular instance we have received this, but there

         16  hasn't been sufficient time for many of us to review

         17  the responses given.  So if we do this, it's not to

         18  be redundant, but as much as it is to allow us to

         19  have the opportunity to hear the response.

         20                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Sure, however I can

         21  help, I will be glad to do it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay.  Property

         23  owners, do they now have the option of a hearing in

         24  their own boroughs?  You can make that as brief as

         25  you want to.
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          2                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, prove it.

          4                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Okay, I will be happy

          5  to elaborate. Referring both to the contents of our

          6  Annual Report and the answer that we submitted to

          7  you, the answer is yes.  And we wanted to also take

          8  note that in response to questions from the

          9  Committee in the past and other interested parties

         10  who appear before us, our customers, we did take a

         11  step in 1999 to expand the hearings and new options

         12  for applicants and their representatives in certain

         13  respects.

         14                 In brief, an individual applicant

         15  appearing pro se, that is representing him or her

         16  self is afforded a choice of a hearing at the Tax

         17  Commission's principal offices in Manhattan, as well

         18  as the offices in the borough in which the subject

         19  property is located, the borough in which the

         20  individual resides, and as I said the Manhattan

         21  headquarters, and likewise an attorney or other

         22  representative is afforded the choice of a hearing

         23  at our offices in the borough of which the subject

         24  property is located, the borough in which the client

         25  applicant, if an individual resides, or in the Tax
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          2  Commission's Manhattan Headquarters.  All other

          3  applicants and representatives may opt for a hearing

          4  at the Tax Commission's Offices either in the

          5  borough of which the subject property is located or

          6  at the Tax Commission's Manhattan Headquarters.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  How many

          8  hearings per day does a hearing officer conduct?

          9                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Okay, the short answer

         10  to that question, but that would only be in our

         11  focus is, anywhere between I would say 20 and 90

         12  depending on the complexity of the cases, the

         13  experience of the person assigned to conduct the

         14  hearings, the rate of calendaring that is going on

         15  at the time and the like.

         16                 If the Committee to illicit any other

         17  information about our productivity or how do the

         18  hearings, I would be happy to answer it, but that

         19  was just the short, direct response to the question

         20  posed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  You have also

         22  said that the hearings are conducted on an

         23  individual basis by the President and member of the

         24  Tax Commission Agency Council or a member of the

         25  Appraisal and Hearing Group; is that what comprises
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          2  the Committee?

          3                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And then you

          5  can make an offer of reduction if you think its

          6  warranted; is that correct?

          7                 MR. DE CUZZI:  That is correct.  An

          8  offer of remedial relief.  Most times if relief is

          9  claimed and warranted, that would take the form of a

         10  reduction and total actual assessment, but the Tax

         11  Commission is empowered and does act with respect to

         12  all claims, including total and partial exemption,

         13  misclassification or unlawfulness.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Now you give

         15  also an example of what you mean by a reduction or

         16  assessment on a two year basis; is that correct?

         17                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Yes.  Basically what

         18  that refers to is that by law the Tax Commission has

         19  under certain circumstances a two- year review

         20  power.  Of course, in whatever the then current year

         21  is, we are empowered to receive, analyze, conduct

         22  hearings, and render determinations on applications

         23  with respect to the current year assessment.  The

         24  circumstances in which, by law, under the Charter

         25  and Administrative Code that we can look back is, if
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          2  somebody had commenced an Administrative Review

          3  proceeding, let's say most typically for the

          4  preceding year, did not like whatever the outcome

          5  was and commenced a Real Estate Property Tax Law,

          6  Article 7 proceeding in Supreme Court, thereby

          7  preserving its claim, we have under law in that

          8  circumstance, if the person wishes to try to revisit

          9  it before us, the power to look again at that

         10  particular year as well as the present one and act

         11  upon it, if we deem warranted.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Now there is a

         13  written determination.

         14                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And is there an

         16  appeal from that determination, or is that the final

         17  step?

         18                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Administratively, it's

         19  the last stop, and the next stop is a judicial

         20  proceeding, a court proceeding. However, as I

         21  indicated or started to indicate before in response

         22  to the preceding question, we do have

         23  administratively in certain circumstances the power

         24  to go back and look at a proceeding even if we have

         25  passed upon it already and it has proceeded onto
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          2  court.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Now, we believe

          4  that everybody pays taxes, but there are certain

          5  people who have exemptions, who are they, and why do

          6  they have exemptions?

          7                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Okay.  I will give you

          8  a snap shot answer, and a more elaborative answer.

          9  First of all, I just want to make clear to the

         10  Committee and for the record that in the first

         11  instance, like all other aspects of setting

         12  assessments, the Department of Finance looking to

         13  state and local law of who is entitled to a total or

         14  partial exemption makes that determination of

         15  whether to afford one and to what extent.

         16                 Someone who is not satisfied with

         17  that in the first instance would apply to the

         18  Department of Finance, and depending on the outcome,

         19  then would apply to us to review it, and if we deem

         20  appropriate change the Department of Finance's

         21  determination.

         22                 I can offer you some examples of

         23  exemptions, but by no means is it an exhaustive

         24  list.  The statute books, state and locals, spend

         25  many, many pages of specific exemptions afforded by
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          2  law.  But just as some examples, property of the

          3  United States in New York State, many public

          4  authorities and corporations, foreign government

          5  property used for diplomatic or counselor functions,

          6  also, property owned and used by the City or other

          7  public bodies, property owned by non- profit

          8  corporations used for specific non profit purposes,

          9  and also, those are examples of full exemptions.

         10                 Partial exemptions include those

         11  afforded to the residences of war veterans and

         12  elderly persons of limited income, as well as

         13  specified new construction, reconstruction or

         14  rehabilitation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And when you

         16  say the residence of war veterans, you're not

         17  talking about anyone who has been in the war.  I'm a

         18  veteran, let's say, and I have been in Vietnam,

         19  Korea, World War II, you mean I don't have to pay

         20  taxes on my property?

         21                 MR. DE CUZZI:  I know you're a

         22  veteran of the Legislative Body wars.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  These are the

         24  wars of the City of New York, and I have got to

         25  still pay taxes.
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          2                 MR. DE CUZZI:  What I was referring

          3  to there, Madam Chairwoman, that there is a category

          4  of exemption called veteran's exemptions, and under

          5  specific circumstances veterans' residences are

          6  entitled to partial exemption, and we see very, very

          7  few, I don't even know if we had one in 1999 claim

          8  to that nature.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Because

         10  veterans don't know about it, or because we don't

         11  tell?

         12                 MR. DE CUZZI:  No, I think it is

         13  probably because both the veterans and the

         14  Department of Finance are pretty well versed in it,

         15  there is little or no controversy surrounding the

         16  provisions of that statute, and it seems to work out

         17  very well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  What would be a

         19  reason that a veteran would have this preference?

         20                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Well I suppose there

         21  is an underlying public policy precept that the

         22  legislature acknowledged that a veteran who has

         23  served his, and I guess, in modern times, our

         24  country well, would be entitled to some kind of a

         25  break as a property owner in terms of a property

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  tax.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  So I would

          4  assume then an honorably discharged veteran would

          5  have a reduction in his tax rate, based upon his

          6  veteran status; is that correct?

          7                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Let me put it to you

          8  this way, Madam Chairwoman, I believe that is

          9  correct, but I also know that there are other

         10  conditions which go into making that determination.

         11  And because we see that so few and far between, I

         12  can't recite the chapter and verse exactly what the

         13  provisions are, but they're well defined, and to my

         14  knowledge there is no controversy or complaint about

         15  anyone being deprived of that exemption that is

         16  entitled to it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  The reason that

         18  I'm asking, is because I know I have mentioned to

         19  this to someone who is a veteran, they never heard

         20  of it.  Would you be good enough to send me a copy

         21  of that particular requirement of what qualifies you

         22  for that?

         23                 MR. DE CUZZI:  I would be delighted

         24  to send you the legal provisions, as well as any

         25  other materials that may exist on that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I will have

          3  copies for all of the members of our Committee,

          4  because I'm sure we all have veterans in our

          5  communities who could benefit from that knowledge.

          6                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Now besides the

          8  veteran, whom we feel has earned this right, not to

          9  pay taxes to the fullest extent, and also because of

         10  the delegations who are foreign diplomats and the

         11  cities and the states and the federal government who

         12  do not pay taxes, and also the not- for- profits,

         13  and when you say not- for- profit that means the Red

         14  Cross doesn't pay, the Salvation Army does not pay,

         15  schools will not pay, churches, and schools and

         16  temples will not pay.

         17                 Now not- for- profit do they include,

         18  not- for- profit that is organized under, let's say

         19  a 501- 3- C?

         20                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Let me answer both

         21  that specific question and also provide some

         22  additional background information which you seem to

         23  be looking for.

         24                 Like veterans' exemptions, exemptions

         25  which are afforded to charitable organizations using
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          2  their property for non profit purposes, there are

          3  specific, unequivocal conditions and requirements

          4  which must be met, one of which includes a

          5  demonstration that you are to be organized as an

          6  entity in a non profit way, that structure, and

          7  also, how you're using the property.  You have to

          8  prove that not only do you exist as a non profit,

          9  but that you're actually using a property for which

         10  you seek an exemption in a non- profitable way for

         11  some charitable or other non- profit reasons.

         12                 Also, I just want to emphasize to the

         13  Committee and for the record that the Department of

         14  Finance is the one in the first instance that makes

         15  decisions and is responsible for implementing what

         16  the law says about exemptions.  The only way we ever

         17  get to pass upon it is somebody or some organization

         18  who believes they are entitled to some type of an

         19  exemption, but has not received one from Finance,

         20  otherwise we don't have jurisdiction over that

         21  topic.

         22                 And also, Madam Chairwoman, one final

         23  note, exemption applications from people who believe

         24  they are entitled to one but who haven't received

         25  it, there is a very, very small minority of the some
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          2  50,000 cases that we do each year.  There is but a

          3  couple of dozen in that big pie that relate to that

          4  topic.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  We understand

          6  that this is not an open bag for Santa Clause to

          7  come and say, here, twenty for you, fifty for you,

          8  et cetera, et cetera.  But we think that we ought to

          9  know how they exist, if someone asks us, how do you

         10  get to be, you know, tax exempt or don't pay real

         11  estate taxes, what is required? We ought to be able

         12  to give an answer.

         13                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Madam Chairwoman, if

         14  you would like more information about exemptions,

         15  including non- profits as well as veterans, we will

         16  send you whatever we have that spells out line by

         17  line what is involved, I will be happy to do that

         18  for you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Thank you.  And

         20  we also appreciate the fact and understand from your

         21  testimony also, that Finance has the ability even in

         22  terms of a determination to make the final decision

         23  as to what can and what cannot be in certain

         24  circumstance.

         25                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Subject then to
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          2  someone applying to us for review and then also the

          3  court if they don't agree with our decision.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Fine, thank

          5  you.

          6                 MR. DE CUZZI:  You're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I would wonder

          8  though, over the past few years the Tax Commission

          9  has greatly enhanced its website providing access to

         10  forms and information or documents which can be

         11  downloaded.  Has offering these materials over the

         12  Internet enhanced the agency's effectiveness and

         13  ability to function, and if so, how?

         14                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Okay, let me take that

         15  one up.  First of all, in a broader sense we have

         16  been focusing now in the recent past couple of years

         17  and more and more as time goes on in employing

         18  applied technology to enhance our productivity and

         19  efficiency in customer service delivery, and we have

         20  come a long way in doing that, and many of the

         21  things that we have accomplished in that regard are

         22  set forth in our 1990 Annual Report and will be

         23  embellished upon when we submit our forthcoming 1999

         24  Report in March 2000.

         25                 Having said that, with regard to your
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          2  specific question, let me put it to you this way, I

          3  believe it was a year ago where we first started

          4  making our forms, application forms and

          5  instructions, and statements of procedures available

          6  to customers on the Internet, but it was done

          7  initially on the Department of Finance's website,

          8  because our website had not yet been fully

          9  constructed and implemented and operational.  It now

         10  is and our objective the forthcoming Year 2000

         11  assessment review period is to make those very same

         12  forms and statements of procedure as in the like on

         13  our own website.  Because of the limited experience

         14  we have had to date, I can't give you a

         15  comprehensive, unequivocal response of how it has

         16  helped people, but I can tell you that there are

         17  people who have availed themselves of that means of

         18  downloading the form and then filing to us that way.

         19    We expect that more and more people would continue

         20  to do that because of the ease and the convenience

         21  it offers the customer.

         22                 As far as it relates to us, the more

         23  people that would proceed that way the fewer forms

         24  that we would have to print and handle, at least, in

         25  the first instance, we would have to handle it on
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          2  the way back.  But also an exciting thing that we're

          3  looking into for the future of maybe a year or two

          4  down the road is exploring the prospect of how we

          5  might accept filing, not only letting the customers

          6  download the papers to fill out, but after that

          7  letting them actually transmit to us electronically,

          8  but that presents a host of logistical and legal and

          9  even potentially ethical issues in terms of

         10  signatures and the like, and I know the State

         11  Legislature has been addressing that in court

         12  context, and we're eyeballing that carefully, and we

         13  will see what we can do about it in the near future.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  The website

         15  receives hits, does it realize the website

         16  initiating in action?

         17                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Madam Chairwoman, let

         18  me give you what should be a short answer to that

         19  question.  Because our own website was only recently

         20  fully made operational and implemented we have very

         21  limited experience that would enable us to answer

         22  that with particularity, except to say yes, we have

         23  a system in place that will track the number of hits

         24  and collate them and the like.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Do you keep a
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          2  file of those complaints you receive?

          3                 MR. DE CUZZI:  You need to be more

          4  specific about what you mean by complaints, because

          5  that word can have a few meanings in our context.

          6  What do you mean by complaint?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  If someone

          8  calls in and you receive a complaints, do you have a

          9  record of those complaints and how you handled them

         10  or what?

         11                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Okay, I see.  The

         12  reason I had asked you to elaborate is because in

         13  tax certiore parlance, a complaint actually is

         14  synonymous with an application for review, a formal

         15  application, so there is that version of complaint.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, so the

         17  application is your record.

         18                 MR. DE CUZZI:  That is the formal

         19  record.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay.

         21                 MR. DE CUZZI:  But also if people

         22  write with some other kind of non- formal complaints

         23  or complaints within the formal context of their

         24  review applications, we, of course, keep records of

         25  those as well and respond to them accordingly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, thank

          3  you.  Council Member Harrison, do you have any

          4  questions?  Okay.

          5                 I would think that what we're going

          6  to do is go over your written responses, because

          7  your responses to me and having it to read while you

          8  were talking were helpful, and if there is anything

          9  that we do not, if there is anything that we have a

         10  question on, we will contact your agency and request

         11  further explanation and ask you to contact our

         12  Counsel to provide the information that is

         13  requested.

         14                 In the interim, we would like to

         15  thank you for your presence, and we look forward to

         16  receiving the information that you stated that you

         17  would provide for us.  And thank you so very much

         18  for your presence today.

         19                 MR. DE CUZZI:  Madam Chairwoman and

         20  members of the Committee, I thank you for the

         21  opportunity to share with you what we have been

         22  doing and respond to the interest and concerns you

         23  have.  Be assured that the information you have

         24  requested will be forthcoming, and also, as always,

         25  if you have any other questions or requests, we will
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          2  be responsive at that time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Thank you so

          4  much.  Okay. FISA, is FISA present?  Okay.  In case

          5  I don't see you gentlemen again, happy holidays.

          6  Thank you, have a good one.

          7                 Good afternoon.  Would you please

          8  identify yourself for the record by naming title and

          9  agency, please?  Would you speak into the

         10  microphone?

         11                 MR. TOWNSEND:  My name is Robert

         12  Townsend.  I'm the Acting Executive Director for

         13  Financial Information Services Agency.

         14                 MR. PASCALI:  Don Pascali.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Would you pull

         16  that closer and then speak into the microphone?

         17                 MR. PASCALI:  Don Pascali, Deputy

         18  Executive Director of FISA.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, do you

         20  have prepared testimony?  You can either summarize

         21  or read.

         22                 MR. TOWNSEND:  I would like to read a

         23  brief statement, please.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, fine.

         25  The third gentleman that has joined, would he please
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          2  identify himself for us?

          3                 MR. FUCHS:  Yes, I'm Bob Fuchs from

          4  FISA.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, Bob,

          6  thank you, nice to have you.

          7                 MR. TOWNSEND:  FISA is responsible

          8  for managing information systems and technology

          9  required to administer the payroll, procurement,

         10  budget and accounting systems for the City of New

         11  York.

         12                 The payroll functions are processed

         13  by the Payroll Management System, PMS.  This

         14  application was remediated for Y2K compliance in

         15  August of 1998 and has been thoroughly tested.  We

         16  are not anticipating any significant software

         17  problems as we enter the new year.

         18                 The procurement, budget and

         19  accounting functions are now being processed through

         20  the Financial Management System, FMS.

         21                 The Financial Management System has

         22  been a very large development project that has

         23  consumed the vast majority of FISA resources for

         24  approximately the past two years.  This system is

         25  the Y2K compliant replacement for the Integrated
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          2  Financial Management System and a number of other

          3  related systems.  As of July 6th, 1999, the core

          4  functions of accounting, the General Fund Budget,

          5  and the Capital Fund Budget have been processing in

          6  FMS. Base procurement functionality has been

          7  implemented and additional components are scheduled

          8  for implementation in the early part of the new

          9  year.

         10                 This system has also been extensively

         11  tested for Y2K compliance, and once again we do not

         12  anticipate any significant software problems related

         13  to the new year.

         14                 The year 2000 will continue to

         15  require a large commitment to the implementation of

         16  FMS.  We will need to stabilize the software

         17  currently installed, continue with the

         18  implementation of those functions scheduled for the

         19  early months of the new year, and initiate the

         20  processes of bringing procurement functionality out

         21  to the originating points in the line agencies.

         22                 FISA will also start to get more

         23  heavily involved in the City of New York's automated

         24  time and attendance system, Citytime.  The Citytime

         25  project will dramatically streamline that collection
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          2  of processing of time and attendance, and will

          3  provide automated capabilities primarily in the

          4  areas of policies and procedures and management

          5  reporting.  This project is being directly managed

          6  by the Office of Payroll Administration.  This

          7  system will run at FISA and will be integrated with

          8  the Payroll Management System.

          9                 The year 2000 is less than a month

         10  away.  We have worked very hard to be prepared for

         11  this event.  Our primary goal, through this period,

         12  will be to ensure that we can continue to provide

         13  our services into the new year.

         14                 Thank you.  If you have any

         15  questions, we will answer them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I just have to

         17  ask a few questions, and then my colleagues will ask

         18  other questions.

         19                 You are involved in making sure that

         20  we get our pay checks; is that correct?

         21                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes, that is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, speak up

         23  now, I don't want any butchers on this one.

         24                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay.  Now that
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          2  means that you are sure that there will be

          3  interruption of that service and that we will have

          4  our checks, and every City employee can be assured

          5  that pay day will not be a payless pay day; is that

          6  correct?

          7                 MR. TOWNSEND:  That is correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  That means,

          9  also, that pension payments will be made properly

         10  because all of that will be taken care of in terms

         11  of deductions for pensions, et cetera, et cetera, et

         12  cetera, for those who are working?

         13                 MR. TOWNSEND:  The pension deductions

         14  are from us, the pension processing, though, is from

         15  the Comptroller's Office.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Yes.

         17                 MR. TOWNSEND:  But they assure us

         18  that that will be ready too.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  From those who

         20  are working, who are paying into the pension fund,

         21  that is from you.

         22                 MR. TOWNSEND: Yes, it is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, all of

         24  that will be taken care of by you.

         25                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  So there will

          3  be nothing wrong there.  All of our health care

          4  benefits, the deductions that must be made will come

          5  through you.

          6                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, and there

          8  will be no interruption of that service?

          9                 MR. TOWNSEND:  No, there will not be.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, and so as

         11  far as we know and as far as you can say, we have

         12  nothing to fear for Y2K; is that correct?

         13                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Nothing with the

         14  payroll, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:   Okay, now

         16  then, all of the important things have been taken

         17  care of.  Council Member Harrison.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  I'm just

         19  curious to know, fellows, the OMB originally

         20  requested some kind of a cut in your budget.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Would you speak

         22  louder, we can't hear you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  OMB had

         24  originally requested a budget cut, and I'm curious

         25  to know how much it was, what has happened, how you
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          2  have suffered, have you complied, and what the

          3  impact has been?

          4                 MR. TOWNSEND:  As a former OMB

          5  employee, somebody who worked there - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  A former

          7  OMB.

          8                 MR. TOWNSEND: - -  for 26 years, I

          9  will tell you that OMB has asked for a multiple

         10  reduction program - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  For ever

         12  and ever.

         13                 MR. TOWNSEND: - -  for both FISA and

         14  everybody else.  At the moment, OMB is asking us for

         15  a reduction program and we're formulating a plan as

         16  to how we think we can reasonably meet those

         17  targets.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Does that

         19  mean that you might be replacing human power with

         20  machine power, or reducing the degree of activities

         21  in which you engage, or how would you achieve and

         22  still remain functional and efficient?

         23                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Well, we would try to

         24  do it through some productivity reductions,

         25  primarily.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  So you feel

          3  comfortable with the request?

          4                 MR. TOWNSEND:  No, no, not at all.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Okay, we

          6  have established that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I had known

          8  already before he even said a word.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  So we will

         10  be hearing from you subsequently, no doubt?

         11                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Possibly.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Okay.

         13                 MR. TOWNSEND:  We're in a process,

         14  I'm hoping that my 26 years at OMB will afford me a

         15  little bit more negotiating room.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Okay, thank

         17  you for being where you are today.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Council Member

         19  Moskowitz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you,

         21  and thank you for your testimony.  I have a brief

         22  question, I had heard a rumor, which I doubt is

         23  true, but I just wanted to confirm, that City

         24  employees got information having to do with the

         25  Charter Revision in the November elections included
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          2  in their payroll information, I was wondering if

          3  there was any truth to that?

          4                 MR. PASCALI:  There is a message that

          5  OPA puts on the pay stubs of the checks.  I'm not

          6  aware of the message, but could be.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  I'm sorry,

          8  so sometimes there are messages from - -

          9                 MR PASCALI:  Every pay check has a

         10  message on the pay stub.  It usually has donate

         11  blood, you know, go to vote, save water, things of

         12  that sort.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  And are

         14  you aware of anything having to do with the Charter?

         15                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Not specifically, but

         16  we will look.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Is it

         18  possible to check?

         19                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes, it is.

         20                 MR. PASCALI:  Oh, sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  And send

         22  me a copy?

         23                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes, we will.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Now if that

          3  message comes in and it comes from the Mayor's

          4  Office it is going to go into the envelope no matter

          5  who; is that correct?

          6                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And if there is

          8  a message from the Comptroller's Office it would go

          9  into check?

         10                 MR. TOWNSEND:  That is equally

         11  correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  So it is a

         13  common practice in the City of New York to transmit

         14  information in that fashion. While we may object to

         15  that kind of message because I quite frankly oppose

         16  the Charter change, the fact is that the Mayor has

         17  the right, the Comptroller has the right, to

         18  disseminate information in that fashion.  I don't

         19  always agree with the message, but they have the

         20  right to put that in, and the employee has the right

         21  to have a file, it is called a Round File, either

         22  use it or lose it, but you certainly can't say that

         23  they can't put something in an envelope to pass onto

         24  you information that says that you can consider this

         25  as an option.  I think, most employees if they have
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          2  been there long enough or smart enough to know that

          3  this is a house, a presentation and no one goes into

          4  that holding site with you as they very accurately

          5  proved.  Okay?

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Point of

          8  information, if I may?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  The

         11  information inserted into the paychecks or however

         12  it is distributed.  Does that include information

         13  about other agencies that goes into the pay stub?

         14  In other words, Department for the Aging has many

         15  programs, would any messages from the Department for

         16  the Aging, for example, be allowable as inclusions

         17  in the pay checks?  Because the complaint has often

         18  been made that DFTA doesn't reach out, and certainly

         19  with the numbers of person in your employ, a simple

         20  reaching out methodology might be just to put a

         21  notice in the pay check.

         22                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Our messages usually

         23  are just going to be for all City employees because

         24  it is coming from one central source.

         25                 MR. PASCALI:  It is controlled by the
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          2  Office of Payroll Administration, they are the one -

          3   -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Office of

          5  what?

          6                 MR. PASCALI:  Payroll Administration.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Payroll?

          8                 MR. PASCALI:  They are the one that

          9  decide what message goes in the check stubs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  So I will

         11  check with them.

         12                 MR. PASCALI:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Okay.

         14                 MR. TOWNSEND:  And individual could

         15  have policies where they put their own messages in

         16  with their pay checks, that is possible.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Who did he say

         20  we check with?

         21                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Office of Payroll

         22  Administration.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I would say

         24  that most of the time that information is probably

         25  cleared for approval by the Commissioner.
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          2                 MR. PASCALI:  I'm sure it is.

          3                 MR. TOWNSEND:  I'm sure it is.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Yes, well

          5  you know, the information regarding services that

          6  are available could affect people who are on the

          7  payroll today in City service, because they all have

          8  extended families.  They all just don't live in

          9  isolation, and therefore, the information that we

         10  want to distribute could be spread out to everybody

         11  on the payroll, what the hell, you know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, we want

         13  to thank you for your presence and thank you for

         14  your collective wisdom.  How long have you been with

         15  the City of New York?

         16                 MR. FUCHS:  Since 1980.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And you, Sir?

         18                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Since 1971.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Oh, good, and

         20  you, Sir?

         21                 MR. PASCALI:  Since 1977.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Oh, good, good,

         23  good, and you?

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Since 1987.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:   Oh, good,
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          2  okay.  Thank you, old timers, for being here.

          3                 MR. TOWNSEND:  Thank you very much,

          4  have a nice holiday.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay.  BSA.

          6  Would you please identify yourselves by name, title,

          7  and of course, agency?

          8                 MR. KORBEY:  My name is Mitchell

          9  Korbey.  Good afternoon, Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Mitchell?

         11                 MR. KORBEY:  Korbey.  And I'm A

         12  Commissioner on the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         13                 The Chairman, James Chin, has a

         14  scheduling conflict and is unable to be here this

         15  afternoon, so I'm here in his place.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Well you're

         17  from Brooklyn that makes you, of course, sound.

         18                 MR. KORBEY:  Thank you, the City's

         19  largest borough, that's right, thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  And give

         21  him my regards, if you will, please, give Mr. Chin

         22  my regards?  Thank you.

         23                 MR. KORBEY:  Okay, Councilwoman, I

         24  will.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. KORBEY: I'm here today with Pat

          3  Pacifico, who is the Executive Director of the

          4  Board, and Peter Geis, who is our General Counsel.

          5  I have a brief statement, and then I will be happy

          6  to answer any questions you may have.

          7                 The Board, as you know, includes five

          8  members who work full time and serve six- year

          9  terms.  The members are appointed by the Mayor with

         10  confirmation by the Council.  The Charter mandates

         11  that the Board includes an architect, an urban

         12  planner, an engineer, and two laypersons.  I'm one

         13  of the laypersons, but it happens I have the

         14  qualifications as an urban planner.

         15                 The Board hears and decides on

         16  requests for zoning variances, special permits, and

         17  we resolve questions on matters of interpretation

         18  from the Building Code and Fire Code.  Applications

         19  are brought by property owners or interested parties

         20  after approvals have first been sought by other City

         21  agencies.

         22                 The Board's decision- making powers

         23  are limited to very specific findings and remedies

         24  which are articulated in the state and local codes

         25  and also the City's Zoning Resolution.  Land Use and
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          2  Development policy, as you know, is a complex

          3  matter, and multiple City agencies, including the

          4  Department of City Planning, the Department of

          5  Buildings, and the Department of Business Services,

          6  among others are involved, of course, in the Land

          7  Use Policy Review and Development process.

          8                 The BSA addresses very specific cases

          9  and issues, which many times fall outside the broad

         10  and generic regulations which the City has.  We do

         11  this when complying with certain zoning rules

         12  presents practical difficulties or present undue

         13  hardships, and when that does happen the Board has

         14  the authority and the ability to vary those

         15  regulations.

         16                 The Board appreciates the quality of

         17  life concerns and development issues that are

         18  present in the City's many diverse neighborhoods.

         19  And we also understand that the development

         20  community has tremendous value or places tremendous

         21  value in predictable treatment, in fair and

         22  equitable resolutions of issues. Therefore, the

         23  Board very carefully believes that it is important

         24  to review all of its decisions in a careful and

         25  deliberate fashion, and we do that.
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          2                 And I appreciate the opportunity to

          3  be here today, and once again, we would be happy to

          4  review anything or answer any questions you may

          5  have.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Council Member

          8  Sabini.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair. Good afternoon.  First of all, let me

         11  say Mr. Pacifico's arrival at the agency has made it

         12  much more user friendly, at least, for elected

         13  officials, an improvement has been noted.

         14                 Under Local Law 49 of 1991, your

         15  authority to approve building materials and

         16  equipment standards were transferred to the

         17  Department of Buildings and to the Fire Department,

         18  and also your ability to adopt building code and

         19  reference standards was transferred to Buildings.

         20  Has there been any talk about changing your name to

         21  just Board of Appeals?

         22                 MR. KORBEY:  This is something I

         23  guess we talk about in the office from time to time

         24  rather casually, and I think  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:   Football
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          2  pool, the Board of Appeals, Aly McBeal last night.

          3                 MR. KORBEY:  Something like that,

          4  yes, of course, we don't discuss the football pool.

          5  I would say that it's not - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I like

          7  Jacksonville tonight, if you're interested?

          8                 MR. KORBEY:  It's not such a bad idea

          9  because, of course, I think it would resolve, you

         10  know, something that maybe gets discussed from time

         11  to time, but generally speaking since we're so well

         12  known, I'm teasing, because we actually are not all

         13  that well known, but the reality of it is that

         14  probably it may be a source of some confusion, but

         15  very rarely comes up except for the casual

         16  conversations we have in the office.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Since there

         18  is a building boom and construction is really

         19  running rampart all over, and my district is

         20  experiencing it, it's outside of Manhattan, it's

         21  inside of Manhattan, I'm just wondering about, since

         22  you're not an MMR, you're not subject to the MMR,

         23  what would your MMR report look like if you talked

         24  about the number of applications that come before

         25  you?  Have you increased, decreased, do you have a
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          2  projected increase?

          3                 MR. PACIFICO:  No, we are actually

          4  running - - I'm Pat Pacifico.  I'm the Executive

          5  Director of the Board, and we're running almost the

          6  same that we did in the two years that I have been

          7  there.  We don't see a great increase in the need

          8  for the variances coming before us, but I can give

          9  you all the statistical information, because we have

         10  started a tracking system now that we can pull out

         11  two years worth of that information, and I will be

         12  glad to give it to your office.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  It just seems

         14  to me that since there is more building going on

         15  that there would be an increase in the number of

         16  variances sought.  Since you have been there, in

         17  your two years has the processing time gone up or

         18  down?

         19                 MR. PACIFICO:  It has gone down.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  It's gone

         21  down, okay.  And what about the approval/rejection

         22  ratio?

         23                 MR. PACIFICO:  Not that that would be

         24  anything.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  That would be
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          2  empirical because maybe people's applications are

          3  fair or less fair, but just out of curiosity.

          4                 MR. PACIFICO:  I think we hope we

          5  have improved the applications system and give out

          6  more information and make sure everyone was aware,

          7  including, I take a lot of effort in contacting

          8  Community Boards and making sure that they review

          9  the information that was sent to them so that they

         10  know what is happening around the corner.  And even

         11  though by our application process you must notify a

         12  400 foot radius of the site, we find a lot of times

         13  that people don't understand the application

         14  process.

         15                 So I think the approval rating, I

         16  would have to dig out all that information and

         17  compare it to the years that we have been there, and

         18  I would be glad to do that too, and pass it on.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Lastly, we

         20  were getting reports on decisions in Community

         21  Boards which were ex officio members, and I guess

         22  what the process was, if we were in a Community

         23  Board you didn't want to have to pull out the map to

         24  see whose Council District everything was in, but

         25  you notified all of us, decisions in Boards which

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  we're ex officio members, but those seemed to have

          3  stopped again, and I'm just wondering are going to

          4  do them, you plan on doing them, because I think

          5  they're helpful? We don't always, I send people from

          6  time to time to your hearings, as you know, but we

          7  don't make everyone of them and some of them there

          8  are from time to time what I view as administerial

          9  decisions that you rejected, so I would just like to

         10  know about them.

         11                 MR. PACIFICO:  We are behind three

         12  bulletins.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Right.

         14                 MR. PACIFICO:  And we're up- to- date

         15  as of this week I will have all my bulletins out.

         16  It's a tedious process for us. We're hoping to go

         17  online and have everything online.  The problem is

         18  when I started checking Community Boards, a lot of

         19  Community Boards are not online.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Yes, we know,

         21  we know. Thank you, Madam Chair.  Thank you,

         22  gentlemen.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Council Member

         24  Harrison.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Yes, I just
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          2  want to take this opportunity to admit to the

          3  members of the Board of Standards and Appeals that I

          4  was a very hostile person to your organization

          5  because I never knew what you were doing, and I know

          6  my education to Pat Pacifico, who took great trouble

          7  and spent considerable time indoctrinating me into

          8  the procedures of which I was completely unaware.  I

          9  am not getting your bulletins, which I don't always

         10  read, Pat, but at least I do get them, and I know

         11  you are there. And I do know that my community has

         12  had recourse to appeal systems in your Bureau on

         13  many occasions and we still have ongoing cases

         14  there.  I just wanted to say thank you for being

         15  there, and just keep on doing a good job.

         16                 MR. PACIFICO:  Thank you,

         17  Councilwoman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  You're very

         19  welcome. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I think I

         21  probably fall in between, I think there are

         22  bulletins that come, but I agree with you that many

         23  times Community Boards do not know and don't

         24  understand, and I think that quite often you vote

         25  for things without having seen the area or without
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          2  having any concern possibly for what you do.  And

          3  the tragic fact is that while your Board has a

          4  planner and an architect and whatever, has A

          5  professional component, a Community Board does not

          6  have that.  And even thought they were directed to

          7  provide that, some professional help by Charter, it

          8  has never been implemented, so that Community Board

          9  limps along without that skill.

         10                 So I can point to Willouby Street

         11  where there are two car washes adjacent to each

         12  other that expanded, and there was a Women's Health

         13  Clinic there, which is now vacant.  Because how

         14  could you continue to enter a building where cars

         15  were on the sidewalk, where the streets are wet,

         16  where when it snows and with the winter that water

         17  freezes on the sidewalk and people can't walk on the

         18  sidewalk, because people are putting their cars on

         19  the sidewalk in order to dry them.

         20                 This also changes and affects the

         21  quality of life, which you referred to you because

         22  there is a co-op on the other side of that.  No one

         23  looked at the community, no one made any, had any

         24  thoughts at all about that.  And I agree that there

         25  is some responsibility on the part of the Community
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          2  Board, but without the Community Board being a part

          3  of the informational process, it's not going to

          4  work.  And that was a decision that was very, very

          5  bad, and then when you voted to expand that car

          6  wash, and of course, when you find out after the

          7  second expansion, when someone comes to me, it's a

          8  horrible situation, because now they have flashing

          9  lights, we lost the Women's Health Clinic, and we

         10  have got cars on the sidewalk, which we have got to

         11  get DOT to do something about and the Police

         12  Department and we have to get people out of the

         13  street because the sidewalk is so often misused.

         14                 So I think, perhaps, maybe we have to

         15  find a more cooperative way of working together, and

         16  I would welcome that kind of an opportunity.  I

         17  would agree that you have a tremendous caseload, but

         18  I would also say, so do we, and we would like to

         19  find a way of working with you in a better fashion.

         20                 MR. PACIFICO:  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And perhaps

         22  alerting our Community Boards and getting them the

         23  assistance that they need so that we can work more

         24  collaboratively in a better fashion.

         25                 MR. PACIFICO:  Without talking
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          2  specifically about any case, I would like to get the

          3  address of that car wash.  They can't park their

          4  cars on the street, and they have limitations, and

          5  in their resolution we put compliance issues before

          6  them.

          7                 I don't know why the car wash was

          8  amended, it could have been in a case before us and

          9  they came into expand, in other words, a long time

         10  ago granted variance.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  No, it wasn't a

         12  long time ago.

         13                 MR. PACIFICO:  It was a new variance?

         14    Well, I would like to look the case up and see.

         15  You know, Councilwoman, sometimes I find that a

         16  Community Board, and it may not be yours, will vote

         17  for an item, and the Councilperson doesn't know, or

         18  never knew that this would create a problem later on

         19  down the line, because they didn't communicate with

         20  their Councilperson or the Borough President.  So I

         21  think it is just communication, and I would be glad

         22  to talk to your DM of your Community Board, she

         23  should have my number, we did a mailing just to

         24  specifically let DMs know call me, fax me, let me

         25  know what the community is thinking.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I will

          3  certainly do that.  I think the District Manager at

          4  that time was out ill, and someone was acting, and

          5  that was a tragic, tragic mistake.  I will take you

          6  up on that.

          7                 MR. PACIFICO:  Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Do you have a

          9  card?

         10                 MR. PACIFICO:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Good, I will

         12  take it.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. PACIFICO:  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Any other

         15  questions?  Thank you so very much.

         16                 MR. PACIFICO:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Who is Lisa

         18  Gomes?  Okay. Where is Mary Ann Carey, District

         19  Manager, she is what?  Okay, fine.  Lisa, would you

         20  come forward, please?

         21                 Since we had two Queens Council

         22  members here, everything must be well in your

         23  district.  Okay, would you please identify yourself

         24  by name, Community Board and District for the

         25  record?
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          2                 MS. GOMES:  My name is Lisa Gomes.

          3  I'm from Community Board #9, representing the

          4  District Manager Mary Ann Carey.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Now I'm from

          6  Brooklyn, where is Community Board #9, what

          7  districts, what areas in Queens?

          8                 MS. GOMES:  It encompasses Kew

          9  Gardens, Richmond Hill, Woodhaven, and Ozone Park.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, who is

         11  the Council member for that area?

         12                 MS. GOMES:  We have - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Karen

         14  Koslowitz?

         15                 MS. GOMES:  Councilwoman Koslowitz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  John

         17  Sabini, maybe.  No.

         18                 MS. GOMES:  Councilman Stabile,

         19  Councilman Ognibene, and Councilman Thomas White,

         20  Jr.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  You have a

         23  lot of them.

         24                 MS. GOMES:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  This is a very

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  interesting presentation.

          3                 MS. GOMES:  That's our District

          4  Manager, and the wonderful world of computers.

          5                 Good afternoon.  I'm going to read

          6  her testimony that is before you.

          7                  "As the new millennium approaches

          8  this Board looks back on all the projects, programs

          9  and accomplishments that came together with the help

         10  of our representatives here in the New York City

         11  Council.  I would be remiss if I did not take this

         12  opportunity to thank you for all your support and

         13  assistance during the past years.  Your support gave

         14  us funding to continue our work in our respective

         15  communities.  We look forward to working with you in

         16  whatever elected position you seek in the future.

         17                 As we enter the new millennium, my

         18  first concern is what to do when my complaint system

         19  crashes on January 1, 2000. Yes, our system will

         20  crash.  How bad it will be we do not know. Only last

         21  week the Mayor's Office recognized the fact that we

         22  are not Y2K compatible.  He assigned a contact

         23  person to help in the transition of 59 Boards.  Too

         24  little, too late.  We need additional funding to

         25  hire a firm to work directly with us.  The
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          2  consultant can write and install a new complaint

          3  system that is Y2K compatible.  The figure discussed

          4  is much more than any of us can afford.  That is the

          5  reason we come to you again and request a budget

          6  increase to $175,000.  As in the past we know you

          7  will do your best.

          8                 Youth issues, the loss of our Youth

          9  Coordinator put us in a quandary in relationship to

         10  youth programs.  We are still reeling from its

         11  backlash.  We continue to see the problem manifest

         12  itself by young people roaming the streets.  They

         13  participate in antisocial activity in place of the

         14  structured programs Youth Coordinators sought out

         15  and advocated for.  Community- based organizations

         16  are left out of the loop when it comes to policies

         17  and information regarding their contracts, funding,

         18  and et cetera. The Youth Coordinator and

         19  Comprehensive Planning in Community Boards must be

         20  restored.

         21                 Community Board #9 encompasses

         22  Community School District 27 and 28, both districts

         23  are extremely overcrowded. Community School District

         24  27 services over 32,000 students.  We have run out

         25  of classrooms.  Mini- schools and annexes permeate
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          2  the district.  Children are attempting to learn in

          3  tansportables, and that is definitely not a

          4  solution.  Many schools have classes in the

          5  gymnasiums, lunchrooms, and auditoriums, if schools

          6  are lucky enough to have them.  Aggressive action

          7  and innovative ideas are needed.

          8                 Last year the Chancellor overlooked

          9  Community Board #9 again in the announcement of

         10  sites for Beacon Schools.  Council Member Stabile

         11  submitted JHS 210 as a site.  The Forest Park

         12  Runners submitted a proposal for the site.  The

         13  proposal includes satellite programs at Richmond

         14  Hill High School, Franklin K. Lane High School and

         15  in Forest Park.  The program include tutorial

         16  services, art classes, cultural programs, dance and

         17  musical instruction.  It also includes a swim

         18  program for youth, toddlers, advanced lifeguards and

         19  a swim program for those with special needs.  The

         20  Department of Youth and Community Development told

         21  us that they erroneously included too many schools

         22  in the Beacon Program and subsequently ran short of

         23  funding.  Additional funding is being sought.

         24  Approval of our program came one year ago, we must

         25  not be penalized for a miscalculation on someone's
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          2  part.  I urge that our program be totally funded and

          3  begun January 2000.

          4                 Our fair share dollars remain at

          5  $50,757.  This limits the funding for many of our

          6  not-for-profit groups.  The meager funding is

          7  gobbled up by the excessive school-opening fees

          8  charged by the Board of Education.  A not-for-profit

          9  pays to open the school and then is charged for each

         10  classroom, the gym is extra, bathrooms are extra,

         11  pools are extra, et cetera.  Why must a service

         12  organization use 50 percent of its budget to open a

         13  public school, when the schools are open and staffed

         14  until 10:00 pm?  These fees are outrageous,

         15  unwarranted, and burdensome.  When the building is

         16  open and staffed by Board of Education employees, no

         17  additional fees need be required.  This arcane

         18  system must be abolished.

         19                 A large part of the school

         20  overcrowding stems from illegal apartments and the

         21  impact they have on our school system and quality of

         22  life.  Huge one-family homes are now illegal SROs;

         23  the small one-family house down the block is now a

         24  three-family. The Guyaneyese and Indo-caribbean

         25  communities are attempting to work through the
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          2  system to legalize apartments where possible. They

          3  met with the Queens Borough President, local Council

          4  members and with the District Manage of Community

          5  Board #9 to discuss the need to comsider

          6  legalization.  Relax some Department of Building

          7  requirements, inspect them and add the properties to

          8  the tax rolls. The census would show additional

          9  citizens and their children.  New York City will be

         10  eligible for more state and federal funding.

         11                 The final agency that requires

         12  assistance is the Department of Parks.  Tree pruning

         13  and removal are sparse.  Private contractors get

         14  permits to prune and no one monitors the pruning.

         15  Several times I received constituent complaints that

         16  a private contractor pruned trees too close.  Upon

         17  inspection, the abuse was verified.  We need closer

         18  policing of private contractors by the Department of

         19  Parks."

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Thank you.

         21                 MS. GOMES:  You're welcome.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Queens,

         23  Councilwoman.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  I just

         25  wanted to know whether you have enough money to
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          2  staff your Community Board appropriately?  Do you

          3  have enough workers in the office of the Community

          4  Board?

          5                 MS. GOMES:  Yes, we do now with the

          6  budget cuts that were restored.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  They were

          8  restored to get your workers back.

          9                 MS. GOMES:  Yes, the budget that, I

         10  believe, was done in 1995.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Yes.

         12                 MS. GOMES:  And it was restored

         13  probably 1996, 1997.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  And how are

         15  your computers, how are your computers, what is the

         16  situation with your computers, are they functional?

         17                 MS. GOMES:  We have computers, we're

         18  looking to get on the web, we're researching and

         19  finding out a website and a provider for that

         20  website.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  And you

         22  have to pay for your own Y2K compatibility?

         23                 MS. GOMES:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  That does

         25  not come from any place in the City?
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          2                 MS. GOMES:  No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  I think

          4  that is an unreasonable situation, Madam Chair, that

          5  the Community Boards out of their very small funding

          6  have to hire someone to make their --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Why isn't it

          8  done through the City, why isn't it part of your,

          9  you're considered a City agency  -

         10                 MS. GOMES:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: - -  so why

         12  should you have to pay of it?

         13                 MS. GOMES:  I don't know.  I know

         14  that the complaint system that we use was developed

         15  through the City and through the Community

         16  Assistance Unit, and we used to have two people that

         17  were staffed to the Community Boards for technical

         18  assistance, and they would come out from time to

         19  time to the Boards, if you had problems.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  From where,

         21  CAU?

         22                 MS. GOMES:  From CAU, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  How many more?

         24                 MS. GOMES:  There used to be two for

         25  all 59 Boards, City- wide, but they were accessible
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          2  by phone and they would come out to the Boards, if

          3  you had a problem.  That is no longer the case,

          4  although right now as read in the testimony, they

          5  have identified another person to provide technical

          6  assistance if they can.  We get less and less

          7  support from CAU.  Whereas a good four or five years

          8  ago, we had a lot of support from CAU.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  So how are

         10  they supposed to function if they haven't got the

         11  support with their computers making them compatible?

         12                 MS. GOMES:  It would mean going back

         13  to doing complaints, you know, by hand and - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Have you spoken

         15  to the Borough President about this?

         16                 MS. GOMES:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Her response.

         18                 MS. GOMES:  I'm not exactly sure, I

         19  know that the Borough President's Director of

         20  Community Boards, Melinda Katz, is working with the

         21  Community Boards in Queens to get them Y2K

         22  compatible, and they are discussing this issue.  I

         23  think it is to her credit that we now have an

         24  additional person at CAU who is of service to us and

         25  is a technical assistant.  That was through the
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          2  Borough President's Office, and negotiations with

          3  them.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, thank

          7  you.  We have your testimony.

          8                 MS. GOMES:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  All right, and

         10  thank you so very much for coming and bringing this,

         11  this is very important testimony, - -

         12                 MS. GOMES:  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: - -  and we

         14  would like to follow this.

         15                 Are you from the Community Board?

         16  Okay, then I will enter these two.  I have testimony

         17  from Community Board #8 in Queens, and also,

         18  Community Board #4 in Queens, they have submitted

         19  written testimony, they are not present, but their

         20  written testimony will be entered into the record.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  And did you

         22  receive from, did you receive testimony from

         23  Community Board #7, Madam Chair?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I don't have

         25  anything - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  In a letter

          3  form earlier?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  No, I have

          5  nothing from Community Board #7, which is unusual.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  I thought

          7  that she had sent it forward in a letter, because

          8  she hadn't been able to come down.  I will check

          9  that out.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  I have nothing.

         11    Perhaps it is somewhere.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON:  I will

         13  check, thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  Okay, thank

         15  you.  Where is the gentleman that was going, is he

         16  testifying, Sir?  You're not testifying.   Oh,

         17  you're from the Mayor's Office, okay.  All right, it

         18  is obvious that there is no one here who wishes to

         19  offer testimony, there is no one from the Mayor's

         20  Office who is going to offer testimony, I presume.

         21  So hearing no one and seeing no one, this meeting is

         22  adjourned.  Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing adjourned at 3:05 p.m.)

         24                 (The following was read into the

         25  record).
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          2  Testimony of:

          3  Diane Cohen

          4  District Manager

          5  Community Board # 8

          6

          7                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.

          8    I am Diane Cohen, District Manager of Community

          9  Board #8, Queens, speaking on behalf of Chairman

         10  Alvin Warshaviak.

         11                 Community Board #8 is an extremely

         12  busy Board.  In addition to our Charter mandated

         13  duties, such as Annual Report, Statement of Needs,

         14  capital and expense budget priorities, each month we

         15  publish a monthly newsletter, list of Building

         16  Department permits, hold public informational

         17  meetings, public hearings, resolve several hundred

         18  complaints, utilize the one-half day Buildings

         19  Department inspector visits, interact on various

         20  major construction jobs, such as St. John's

         21  University, Queens Hospital Center, future plans at

         22  Queens College and Touro College, Service 43 sewer

         23  project and neighborhood zoning initiatives.  Our

         24  committees are very active and several meet on a

         25  monthly basis.
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          2                 However, we are operating on an

          3  extremely tight budget.  For instance, if a major

          4  piece of equipment such as copy machine is needed,

          5  we do not have money in our budget to cover such a

          6  large expense.  From our minuscule budget, we pay

          7  all expenses to run an office efficiently including

          8  service contracts on our copy machines, purchase new

          9  hardware and software, the lease on the mailing

         10  machine and the office telephone bill.  We are

         11  asking that the City take over some of these

         12  expenses to alleviate the burden on this office.  We

         13  are also requesting the office budget be raised.

         14  Costs, such as postage, service contracts, office

         15  supplies and paper, increase each year.  We must be

         16  able to keep up with the additional expenses.

         17                 The staff of Community Board #8 work

         18  under the most adverse conditions.  The office has

         19  been inspected by the New York State Department of

         20  Labor and eight hazardous violations have been

         21  cited.  The office does not comply with the American

         22  with Disabilities Act.  It is a disgrace that a

         23  handicapped person cannot be accommodated in here.

         24  Queens Borough President Claire Shulman is assisting

         25  with the current lease negotiations on a new office
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          2  space, but we need all the help we can get.  Your

          3  support of these efforts with the Department of

          4  City- wide Administrative Services would be

          5  appreciated so that we can move from our present

          6  unsafe location as quickly as possible.

          7                 As I have testified previously,

          8  Community Board #8 is often the first line of

          9  communication between the local residents and a City

         10  agency.  We are like a little City Hall, right in

         11  the Community, or one- stop shopping center to

         12  access City services.

         13                 In spite of our deplorable working

         14  conditions, we at Community Board #8 more than

         15  fulfill all our Charter mandated duties.  Help us do

         16  them in the most efficient manner possible. Again,

         17  we thank you for any and all assistance you can give

         18  us and for your continued support.

         19

         20  Testimony of:

         21  Rose Renda-Rothschild

         22  District Manager

         23  Community Board #4 Q

         24

         25                 Since the Community Boards' Budget
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          2  was decimated a few years ago, we have done a

          3  Yeoman's job over and beyond to service our

          4  communities.  A couple of years ago money was added

          5  to our budget and we thank the Mayor and City

          6  Council.

          7                 The last couple of years Community

          8  Boards were not even mentioned during budget

          9  negotiations, but we still deliver on our Charter

         10  mandated duties.  The Community Board catchment area

         11  of Corona, Corona Heights, and Elmhurst has a large

         12  new immigrant population with many problems

         13  addressed by the office and staff on a daily basis.

         14  The Community Board Office is the first stop for

         15  residents, students and visitors seeking help and

         16  information on many issues.

         17                 The community residents look to the

         18  District Manager and staff for assistance in dealing

         19  with City agencies, the Police, Sanitation, and any

         20  aid we can contribute on where to access additional

         21  services.  We accomplish much with a minuscule

         22  budget compared to other City agencies and even to

         23  non- profit.

         24                 The Mayor's Office supplied us with

         25  new computers and picked up the insurance costs for
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          2  our offices.  This was a help, but the issue of

          3  equipment, service contracts, office cleaning and

          4  telephone costs should be removed from out budget as

          5  was rent, power, heat and insurance.

          6                 We are also asking for help in

          7  keeping our number one priority: "Build New

          8  Reference Library" on site in the vicinity of 108th

          9  Street and Corona Avenue.  Some other concerns are:

         10                 Expansion of the Elmhurst Branch.  A

         11  new building would be more cost- effective since the

         12  facility is one of the most over utilized.

         13                 Parking for the 110th Precinct.  A

         14  new Precinct is in the pipeline, but until then

         15  where to park?

         16                 Day Care vouchers are available, but

         17  where to go?

         18                 Multi-purpose recreational center to

         19  serve our seniors, young adults and youngsters.

         20  There is no space for available programs.

         21                 I could go on, but time is running

         22  down.

         23                 Thank you for your kind attention.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 3:06 p.m.)

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 13th day of December 1999.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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